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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

ANDREW R. PERRONG
1657 THE FAIRWAY #131
JENKINTOWN, PA 19046
Plaintiff
Case No.
VS.
DR. OZ FOR SENATE JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
2771 PHILMONT AVE.
HUNTINGDON VALLEY, PA 19006
AND
MEHMET OZ
2771 PHILMONT AVE.
HUNTINGDON VALLEY, PA 19006
Defendants.
COMPLAINT
Preliminary Statement
1. Plaintiff Andrew R. Perrong (“Plaintiff”), brings this action under the Telephone

Consumer Protection Act (“TCPA™), 47 U.S.C. § 227, a federal statute enacted in response to

widespread public outrage about the proliferation of intrusive, nuisance calling practices. See

Mims v. Arrow Fin. Servs., LLC, 132 S. Ct. 740, 745 (2012).

2. The Defendants in this action, Dr. Mehmet Oz and his Political Action

Committee, Dr. Oz for Senate, orchestrated placing at least three illegal, campaign-related

prerecorded “robocalls” to the Plaintiff’s telephone number.

3. The Plaintiff never consented to receive such messages.
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Parties
4. Plaintiff Andrew R. Perrong is a Pennsylvania resident, and a resident of this
District.
5. Defendant Dr. Oz for Senate is a Political Action Committee (PAC) which was

organized to support Defendant Mehmet Oz’s campaign for the United States Senate. The PAC
is headquartered and therefore resides in this District.

6. Defendant Mehmet Oz is, inter alia, a candidate for United States Senate who
directed the illegal robocalls complained of herein. Defendant Oz is a resident of this District.

Jurisdiction & Venue

7. The Court has federal question subject matter jurisdiction over these TCPA
claims. Mims v. Arrow Fin. Services, LLC, 132 S. Ct. 740 (2012).

8. Venue is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(2) because a substantial part of
the events or omissions giving rise to the claim occurred in this District, as the automated
messages to the Plaintiff were placed into this District.

The Telephone Consumer Protection Act

9. In 1991, Congress enacted the TCPA to regulate the explosive growth of the
automated calling industry. In so doing, Congress recognized that “[u]nrestricted telemarketing .
.. can be an intrusive invasion of privacy [.]” Telephone Consumer Protection Act of 1991, Pub.
L. No. 102-243, § 2(5) (1991) (codified at 47 U.S.C. § 227).

10.  Under the TCPA, an individual candidate such as Defendant Mehmet Oz may be
personally liable for the acts alleged in this Complaint pursuant to 47 U.S.C. § 217 of the TCPA,
which reads, inter alia:

[T]he act, omission, or failure of any officer, agent, or other person acting for or
employed by any common carrier or user, acting within the scope of his employment,
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shall in every case be also deemed to be the act, omission, or failure of such carrier or
user as well as of that person.

47 U.S.C. § 217 (emphasis added).

11. When considering individual liability under the TCPA, other Courts have agreed
that an officer or individual involved in the telemarketing at issue may be personally liable under
the TCPA. See, e.g., Jackson Five Star Catering, Inc. v. Beason, 2013 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 159985,
*10 (E.D. Mich. Nov. 8, 2013) (“[M]any courts have held that corporate actors can be
individually liable for violating the TCPA where they had direct, personal participation in or
personally authorized the conduct found to have violated the statute.”) (cleaned up); Maryland v.
Universal Elections, 787 F. Supp. 2d 408, 415-16 (D. Md. 2011) (“If an individual acting on
behalf of a corporation could avoid individual liability, the TCPA would lose much of its
force.”).

12. Defendant Oz personally participated in the actions complained of by personally
directing and authorizing the scripting and selecting of calls to be made, personally voicing at
least one of the pre-recorded messages, and personally paying for, selecting, and orchestrating
the calling strategy, including by choosing to use pre-recorded calls.

The TCPA Prohibits all Automated Calls To Protected Numbers

13. The TCPA makes it unlawful “to make any call (other than a call made for
emergency purposes or made with the prior express consent of the called party) using an
automatic telephone dialing system or an artificial or prerecorded voice . . . to any telephone
number assigned to a . . . paging service, cellular telephone service, specialized mobile radio
service, or other radio common carrier service, or any service for which the called party is

charged for the call.” See 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(1)(A)(ii1).
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14. Congress singled out these services for special protection either because Congress
realized their special importance in terms of consumer privacy and therefore protected them (as
in the case of cellular phones), or because the numbers are assigned to services, like Mr.
Perrong’s VolIP service, for which the called party is charged, thus shifting the cost of automated
or prerecorded messages onto consumers. See Barr v. Am. Ass’n of Pol. Consultants, Inc, 140 S.
Ct. 2335, 2363, (2020) (Gorsuch, J. & Thomas, J., concurring in part and dissenting in part).

15.  According to findings by the Federal Communication Commission (“FCC”), the
agency Congress vested with authority to issue regulations implementing the TCPA, such
messages are prohibited because, as Congress found, automated or prerecorded messages are a
greater nuisance and invasion of privacy than live ones, are costly, and are inconvenient.

16. The TCPA provides a private cause of action to persons who receive calls in
violation of 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(1)(A). See 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(3).

17. This cause of action applies to users of any one of the four protected services
(pager, cellular, specialized mobile radio [i.e. radiotelephony locator beacons or dispatch
systems], or another radio common carrier service [i.e. ship-to-shore or air-to-ground]), or any
service, including residential, VoIP, and landline services, for which the called party is charged.
See Lynn v. Monarch Recovery Mgmt., Inc., 953 F. Supp. 2d 612, 623 (D. Md. 2013).

18. “Non-emergency prerecorded voice or autodialed calls to [the destinations
enumerated in 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(1)(A)] are permissible only with the prior express consent of
the called party.” This includes political calls. See FCC Enforcement Advisory: Tel. Consumer
Prot. Act Robocall & Text Rules - Biennial Reminder for Pol. Campaigns About Robocall & Text

Abuse, 31 FCC Red. 1940, 1941 n.6 (2016) [hereinafter FCC Advisory].
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Factual Allegations

19.  Defendants are a candidate for U.S. Senate, Mehmet Oz, and the PAC organized
for his campaign.

20. To generate support for Mehmet Oz in the 2022 primary election, Defendants
relied on prerecorded “robocalls.”

The Calls to Mr. Perrong

21.  Plaintiff Perrong is a “person” as defined by 47 U.S.C. § 153(39).

22. Plaintiff’s telephone number (the “Number”), 215-947-XXXX, is on the National
Do Not Call Registry and has been continuously since 2005.

23. Despite this registration, the Defendants sent three prerecorded “robocalls” to
Plaintiff on March 5, April 20, and May 16, 2022.

24, The Number is assigned to a Voice over Internet Protocol (VoIP) telephone
service, which allows for voice calls to be placed over a broadband Internet connection.

25. That Number, which is assigned to a VoIP telephone service, is charged for each
call it receives.

26. The VolIP telephone service for the Number is Anveo.

27. The services charges a ring charge of $0.005 for the provision of Caller ID Name
lookup information for each call placed to the Number, even if the call is not answered.

28. The service also charges a per-minute charge of $0.004 per minute for voice
charges for each minute of talk time, including voicemail time, for each call placed to the

Number.
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29.  The Number is therefore “assigned to a . . . service for which the called party is
charged for the call” and any calls placed to that number are subject to the restrictions
enumerated in 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(1)(A)(iii).

30. Despite this, Defendants placed a pre-recorded call to the Number from the caller
ID 610-679-9074 on March 5, 2022.

31.  The pre-recorded call stated:

“Hi, this is Ali with Dr. Oz for Senate. Dial 844-660-0494 to opt out from these
messages. [’'m calling to invite you to an event in your area with Dr. Oz on Tuesday,
March 8§ at 7pm. It’ll be at the Normandy Farm and Conference Center at 1401 Morris
Road in Blue Bell. If you have any questions or you’d like to RSVP, please give us a call
back at 610-679-9074. We hope to see you there. Thanks for your time and this call was
paid for by Dr. Oz for Senate 610-679-9074.”

32.  Defendants continued to call. They placed another pre-recorded call from the
caller ID 610-679-9074 to the Number on April 20, 2022.
33. The pre-recorded call stated:

“Hi, my name is Margo from the Dr. Oz for Senate campaign calling with a quick
reminder about our event tomorrow in Bristol with Dr. Oz and Dr. Ben Carson. It will be
at 9am at Falls Manor at 4010 News Falls Road in Bristol. If you have any questions,
give us a call at 610-679-9074. Thanks! We’re looking forward to seeing you there.”

34, Defendants continued to call. They placed another pre-recorded call from the
caller ID 412-209-6209 to the Number on May 16, 2022.
35.  The pre-recorded call, which was voiced by Defendant Oz, stated:

“Paid for by Dr. Oz for Senate at 2771 Philmont Avenue, Huntington Valley,
Pennsylvania 19006. Phone number is 610-679-9074. Hello, this is Dr. Mehmet Oz. I'm
running for Senate and I’'m endorsed by President Trump. I’m calling to invite you to join
me for a tele-rally with President Trump happening right now at 7pm. Stay on the line to
be connected to the free tele-rally or you can dial 412-209-6209 again that’s 412-209-
6209. Thank you. Paid for by Dr. Oz for Senate 610-679-9074.”
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36. The Plaintiff never provided his consent or requested these calls.
37. The calls were not necessitated by any emergency.
38. Plaintiff was harmed by these calls. He was temporarily deprived of legitimate

use of his telephone and his privacy was improperly invaded. The Plaintiff was charged for the
calls. Moreover, they injured Plaintiff because they were frustrating, obnoxious, annoying, were

a nuisance and disturbed the solitude of Plaintiff.

Legal Claims

Count One:
Violation of the TCPA’s Prohibition Against Automated Calling
Via Pre-Recorded Message

39. Plaintiff incorporates the allegations from all previous paragraphs as if fully set
forth herein.
40. The foregoing acts and omissions of Defendants and/or their affiliates, agents,

and/or other persons or entities acting on Defendants’ behalf constitute numerous and multiple
violations of the TCPA, 47 U.S.C. § 227, by sending calls, except for emergency purposes, to the
telephone number of Plaintiff using a prerecorded voice.

41. As aresult of Defendants’ and/or their affiliates, agents, and/or other persons or
entities acting on Defendants’ behalf’s violations of the TCPA, 47 U.S.C. § 227, Plaintiff is
entitled to an award of $500 in damages for each and every call made to his telephone number
for which he is charged for the call using an artificial or prerecorded voice in violation of the
statute, pursuant to 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(3)(B).

42. Plaintiff is also entitled to and does seek injunctive relief prohibiting Defendants

and/or their affiliates, agents, and/or other persons or entities acting on Defendants’ behalf from
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violating the TCPA, 47 U.S.C. § 227, by making calls or sending messages, except for
emergency purposes, to any number using an artificial or prerecorded voice in the future.

43. The Defendants’ violations were willful and/or knowing.

Relief Sought
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff requests the following relief:
A. Injunctive relief prohibiting Defendants from calling telephone numbers using an

artificial or prerecorded voice and/or ATDS.

B. Because of Defendants’ violations of the TCPA, Plaintiff seeks for himself $500
in damages for each violation or—where such regulations were willfully or
knowingly violated—up to $1,500 per violation, pursuant to 47 U.S.C. §

227(6)(3).

C. Such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.

Plaintiff requests a jury trial as to all claims of the complaint so triable.

Dated: July 11, 2022

R R T2
Andrew R. Perrong
Plaintiff Pro-Se
1657 The Fairway #131
Jenkintown, PA 19046
Phone: 215-791-6957
Facsimile: 888-329-0305
andyperrong@gmail.com
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DESIGNATION FORM
(to be used by counsel or pro se plaintiff to indicate the category of the case for the purpose of assignment to the appropriate calendar)
Address of Plainiff: 1657 THE FAIRWAY #131, JENKINTOWN, PA 19046
Address of Defendant 2771 PHILMONT AVE. HUNTINGDON VALLEY, PA 19006

BY TELEPHONE CALL TO MY PRIVATE TELEPHONE

Place of Accident, Incident or Transaction:

RELATED CASE, IF ANY:

Case Number: Judge: Date Terminated:

Civil cases are deemed related when Yes is answered to any of the following questions:

1. Is this case related to property included in an earlier numbered suit pending or within one year Yes No
previously terminated action in this court?

2. Does this case involve the same issue of fact or grow out of the same transaction as a prior suit Yes No
pending or within one year previously terminated action in this court?

3. Does this case involve the validity or infringement of a patent already in suit or any earlier Yes No
numbered case pending or within one year previously terminated action of this court?

J KK

4. Ts this case a second or successive habeas corpus, social security appeal, or pro se civil rights Yes No /
case filed by the same individual?

I certify that, to my knowledge, the within case [Jis / [] is not related to any case now pending or within one year previously terminated action in
this court except as noted above.

pare: 0771172022 &\—N&gn hereb/%—5 PRO SE

Attorney~arid-aar / Pro Se Plaintiff Attorney 1.D. # (if applicable)

CIVIL: (Place a V in one category only)
A. Federal Question Cases: B.  Diversity Jurisdiction Cases:
[] 1. Indemnity Contract, Marine Contract, and All Other Contracts [] 1. Insurance Contract and Other Contracts
[1 2. FELA [] 2. Airplane Personal Injury
[] 3. Jones Act-Personal Injury [] 3. Assault, Defamation
[] 4. Antitrust [] 4. Marine Personal Injury
[] 5. Patent [] 5. Motor Vehicle Personal Injury
[1 6. Labor-Management Relations [] 6. Other Personal Injury (Please specify):
[] 7. Civil Rights [] 7. Products Liability
[ 8 Habeas Corpus [] 8. Products Liability — Asbestos
[ 9. Securities Act(s) Cases [] 9. Allother Diversity Cases
[] 10. Social Security Review Cases (Please specify):
11. All other Federal Question Cases

(Please specify): TCPA

ARBITRATION CERTIFICATION
(The effect of this certification is to remove the case from eligibility for arbitration.)

. ANDREW R. PERRONG

, counsel of record or pro se plaintiff, do hereby certify:

Pursuant to Local Civil Rule 53.2, § 3(c) (2), that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the damages recoverable in this civil action case
exceed the sum of $150,000.00 exclusive of interest and costs:

/ Relief other than monetary damages is sought.

DATE: 07/11/2022 &\—G-igﬁ-&ifap'plicg%—5 PRO SE

Attoiney-ai-Lane / Pro Se Plaintiff Attorney I.D. # (if applicable)

NOTE: A trial de novo will be a trial by jury only if there has been compliance with F.R.C.P. 38.

Civ. 609 (5/2018)




